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CENTRAL BANK OF BOSNIA AND HERZEGOVINA
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2O17

Responsibility of the Management and Governing Board for the preparation and approval
of the annual financial statements

The l\ilanagement is required to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of
the financial position of the Central Bank of Bosnia and Herzegovina (the 'Bank') and of the results of its operations
and cash flows, in accordance with lnternational Financial Reporting Standards ("|FRS'), as published by the
lnternational Accounting standards Board ('IASB'). The Management is responsible foi maintaining proper accounting
records to enable the preparation of such flnancial statements at any time. The Managemint tras a generat
responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably available to it to safeguard the assels of the Bank and to prevent
and detect fraud and other irregularities.

The.Governing Board is responsible for selecting suitable accounting policies to conform to applicable legal
requirements and the Management is responsible for their consistent application, making judgements and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent and preparing the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The Management is responsible for the submission to the Governing Board of its annual financial statements,
following which the Governing Board is required to approve the annual linancial statements for submission to the
Parliamentary Assembly of Bosnia and Hezegovina.

The accompanying financial statements set out on pages 5 to 51 were authorised by the Governing Board on 28
March 2018 and are signed, on its behalf by:

Senad Softi6, Ph.D.
Chairman of the Governing Board

Edis Kovadevi6, l\il.Sc.

b
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O GrantThornton

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Govetning Boatd of the centtal Bank of Bosnia and Hezegovina

Opinion

'We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Central Bank of Bosnia and
Herzegovioa (hereinafter: the 'Bank"), which comprise the Statement of financial position
as at 31' December 2077 , and the Statement of profit or loss, Statement of comprehensive
income, Statement of changes in equity and Statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including a srunmary of signi-ficant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanFng financial statemeots present fairly, in all material respects,
the Enancial position of the Central Bank of Bosnia and Herzegovina as at 31 Decembet
2077, and its financial perfomrance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards.

Basis for Opinion

'u7e conducted our audit in accordance with Intetnational Standatds on Auditing
(hereinafter: "ISAs"). Our responsibilities under those standatds are firrther described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of ow report.
!7e ate independent of the Bank in accordance with the Intetnational Ethics Standards
Board fot Accountants' Code of Ethics for Ptofessional Accountants (IESBA Code)
togethet with the ethical requfuements that ate relevant to our audit of the financial
statements of the Bank in the Bosma and Hercegovina, and we have firlfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is suffrcient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of the Management and the Governing Board of the Bank for the
Financial Statements

Management is responsible fot the preparation and fat presentation of the financial
statements in accotdance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such
intemal control as the Management determines is necessary to enable the pteparation of
financial statements tL,at are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Grant Thornton d.o.o. Banja
Luka
Vase Pelagi6a 2/lV
78 000 Banja Luka

Republika Srpska
Bosna i Hercegovina

T +387 51 211 509: +387 51 211 294
F +387 51 211 501

E office@granthomton.ba
www.granthomton.ba
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O GrantThornton

In preparing the financial statements, the Management is responsible for assessing the Bank's

ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting.

The Governing Boatd of the Bank is responsible fot overseeing the Bank's Enancial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Out objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a

whole ate free ftom material misstatement, whether due to ftaud or error, and to issue an

auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assrrance is a high level of assurance, but
it is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a

material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can adse ftom fraud or error and are

considered mateid, i( individually or in the aggtegate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accotdance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional scepticism thtoughout the audit. We also:

. Identi$, and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whethet
due to fraud or ertor, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those dsks, and

obtain audit evidence that is suffrcient and appropriate to provide a basis fot our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from a fraud is higher, than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

mistepresentadons, ot the override of intemal conttol.

. Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedutes that are appropriate in the cfucumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing

an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank's intemal conftol.

t Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting esdmates and related disclosures made by the Management.

Conclude on the apptopriateness of the Management's use of the going concem basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether r mateial uncetainty exists

related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank's ability to
continue as a going concem. If we conclude that amaterial uncetainty exists, we are

required to &aw attention in our auditor's report to the telated disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions

are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
futute events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going concem.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Frnancial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Frnancial statements represent the undedying
ttansactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

@ 2017 Grant Thomton d o o Banja Luka Member of Granl Thomton lnternational Ltd



O GrantThornton

We communicate with the Governing Board of the Bank regatding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findinp, including any signif,rcant

deficiencies in intemal control that we identi$, during out audir.

Banja Luka, 28 March 201.8

Grant Thornton sh.p.k.

Tlaa;na,28Mar.ch201.8

Banja Luka, 28March201.

6'" D
5

TOPHTOH;
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fuonr2
Skopje, 28March2078

@ 2017 Grant Thornton d o o Bania Luka Member of GEnt Thomton lntematimal Ltd
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

ln thousands of KM

lnterest income
Effects of negative interest rates from interest-bearing financial
assets
Effects of negative deposit interest rate on deposits from
local commercial banks

NET INTEREST INCOME

Fee and commission income

Fee and commission expenses

NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

Net realized gains from sale of financial assets available-for-sale

Net foreign exchange (losses) / gains

Other income

OPERATING INCOME

Personnel expenses

Administrative and other operating expenses
Depreciation and amortisation

OPERATING EXPENSES

CENTRAL BANK OF BOSNIA AND HERZEGOVINA
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017

For the vear ended 31 December
Note 2017 2016

4

4

4

29,008

(1',t,470)

4,425

28,740

(8,565)

2,169

21,963

15,834

(s62)

22,344

10,072

(533)

12

6

7

8

I
16

15,272

2,587

(560)

1,560

9,539

8,383

60

1,571

40,822

(19,01e)

(7,583)

(2,03s)

41,897

(18,929)

(6,7e3)

(2,113\

(28,637)

NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 12,185

127,8351

14,062

The accompanying notes on pages 11 to 51 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

In thousands of KM

NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Other comprehensive income

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to the statement of
profit or loss:
Monetary gold

Net changes in fair value of monetary gold

Financial assets available-for-sale

Net changes in fair value of financial assets available-for-sale
Realized fair value gains from financial assets available-for-
sale reclassified to the statement of profit or loss

Total other comprehensive (loss) / income

TOTAL COMPREHENSTVE (LOSS) / TNCOME FOR THE YEAR

CENTRAL BANK OF BOSNIA AND HERZEGOVINA
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017

For the vear ended 31 December
Note 2017 2016

12,185 14,062

(1,194) 22,788

(1,194) 22,788

(15,8e0) 53,673

(2,587) (8,383)

45,290

68,078

82,140

13

12

12

(18,477)

(19,671)

(7,486)

The accompanying notes on pages 11 to 51 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

!n thousands of KM

ASSETS

Foreign currency in cash

Deposits with foreign banks

Special Drawing Rights with the lnternational Monetary Fund

Financial assets available-for-sale

Monetary gold

Held-to-maturity investments

Other assets

Property and equipment

lntangible assets

Other investments

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES, EQUlTY AND RESERVES

Currency in circulation

Deposits from banks

Deposits from the Government and other depositors

Provisions for liabilities and charges

Other liabilities

Total !iabilities

lnitialcapital

General reserves (Retained earnings)

Other reserves

Fair value reserves

Fair value reseryes - financial assets available-for-sale

Fair value reseryes - monetary gold

Total equity and reserves

TOTAL LIABILITIES, EQUITY AND RESERVES

CENTRAL BANK OF BOSNIA AND HERZEGOVINA
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017

As at
31 December

2017
31 December

2016Note

't0

11

25, 30

12

13

14

15

16

16

17

236,402

2,698,650

1,531

6,202,071

203,908

1,214,062

11,656

45,465

1,072

27,813

194,846

2,970,397

2,642

5,02s,829

205,102

1,132,328

4,626

44,681

794

27,813

10.642,630 9,609,058

18

19

20

21

22

4,319,360

5,033,065

624,708

1,650

11.212

4,066,804

4,269,143

590,392

1,611

13,676

9,989,995

25,000

542,766

31,300

53,569

93,120

8,941 ,626

25,000

537,892

31,300

73,240

111,597

(39,551) (38,357)

652,635 667,432

10,642,630 9,609,059

23

The accompanying notes on pages 11 to 51 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CENTRAL BANK OF BOSNIA AND HERZEGOVINA
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

ln thousands of KM

Balance as at 1 January 2O17

Total comprehensive income for the year

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Distribution of profit

Distribution of profit to the state budget (Note 24)

Balance as at 31 December 2017

25,000 537,892

lnitial
capital

General
reserves
(Retained
earnings)

Other
reserves

Fair value
reserves -

financial assets
available-for-

sale

Fair value
reserves -

monetary gold

Total

31,300 111,597 (38,357) 667,432

12,185

(18,477) (1 ,1 94)

12,185
(19,671)

12,185 (18,4771 (1,194) (7,486)

(7,311) (7,311)

25,000 542,766 31,300 93,120 (39,551) 652,635

The accompanying notes on pages 1 1 to 51 are an integral part of these financial statements.

8



CENTRAL BANK OF BOSNIA AND HERZEGOVINA
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017

STATEMENT OF CHANGES tN EQUtTy (CONTINUED)

Initial
capital

Other reserves Fair value
reserves -

financia! assets
available-for-

sale

General
reserves
(Retained
earnings)

Fair value
reserves -

monetary gold

Total

ln thousands of KM

Balance as at 1 January 2016

Total comprehensive income for the year

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Distribution of profit

Distribution of profit to the state budget (Note 24)

Balance as at 31 December 2016

25,000 532,267 31,300 66,307 (51,145) 593,729

14,062 - 14,062

22,788 68,07845,290

14,062 45,290 22,788 82,140

(8,437) (8,437)

25,000 537,892 31,300 111,597 (38,357) 667,432

The accompanying notes on pages 1 1 to 51 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

ln thousands of KM

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERAT]NG ACTTVITIES

Profit for the year
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation
Net realized gains from sale of financial assets available-for-sale
lncome from grants
Provisions for liabilities and charges
(Gain) / Loss on disposal of property and equipment
Dividend income recognized in the statement of profit or loss
lnterest income from held-to-maturity investments and financial
assets available-for-sale recognized in the statement of profit or loss

Net cash flows from operating activities before changes
in operating assets and liabilities

Ghanges in operating assets and liabilities

(lncrease) in deposits with foreign banks
(lncrease) in other assets
lncrease of currency in circulation
lncrease in deposits
(Decrease) / lncrease in other liabilities
Severance payments
Net cash from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from sale of property and equipment
Purchases of property, equipment and intangible assets
Proceeds from coupon maturity and securities maturity of available-for-

sale financial assets
Purchases of available-for-sale financial assets
Sales of available-for-sale financial assets
Collected principal and interest from held-to-maturity investments
Purchases of held-to-maturity investments
Dividends received
Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANGING ACTIVIT!ES
Distribution of profit to the state budget
Net cash used in financing activities

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

CENTRAL BANK OF BOSNIA AND HERZEGOVINA
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017

For the year ended 31 December
Note 2017 20'16

16

7
8

12,185

2,035
(2,587)

(132)
226
(43)

(763)

(28,979)

14,062

2,113
(8,383)

(218)
219

4
(s62)

(28,726\

(187) (60)
343,818 645,619

(18,058) (21,4911

(680,291)
(7,234)

2s2,556
798,238
(1,206)

(195,444)
(283)

567,336
294,404

1,157

46
(3,1 00)

2,242,037
(3,887,900)

470,089
21,607

(s0,720)
763 562

(1,247,1791 1,210,104

(8,437) (18,827)
(8,437) (18W1

(2,764)

5,203,667
(4,342,772)

330,016
21,39s

(911,7971 1,836,896

2,973,091 1,136,195

2,061,294 2,973,091

The accompanying notes on pages 11 to 51 are an integral part of these financial statements
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CENTRAL BANK OF BOSNIA AND HERZEGOVINA
Noles to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

The Central Bank of Bosnia and Herzegovina (the "Bank') was established in accordance with the Law on the Central
Bank of Bosnia and Herzegovina, which was adopted by the Parliamentary Assembly of Bosnia and Hezegovina ("8H")
on 20 June 1997, according to the General Framework peace Agreement in Bosnia and Hezegovina.

The Bank started its operations on 1 1 August 1997.

The main objectives and tasks of the Bank are:

- to define, adopt and control the implementation of monetary policy of BH through the issuance of local currency
(Convertible Mark or "KM") with full coverage in tree, convertible foreign exchange assets;

- to keep and manage the official foreign exchange reserves of the Bank in a safe and profitable manner;- to implement monetary policy in accordance with the Law on the Central Bank of Bosnia and Herzegovina;- to establish and maintain adequate payment and settlement systems;
- to coordinate the activities of the banking agencies, who are in charge of issuing banking licences and

supervising banks;
- to accept deposits from the state and public institutions of BH and deposits from commercial banks;
- to issue provisions and guidelines for the performance of the Bank's operations, in accordance with the Law on

the Central Bank of BH;
- to take part in the operations of international organisations working on strengthening the financial and economic

stability of the country;
- to represent BH in international organisations regarding monetary policy issues

The highest body of the Bank is the Governing Board, which is in charge of defining monetary policy and the control of its
implementation, and the organisation and the skategy of the Bank in accordance with the Law on the Central Bank of
Bosnia and Hezegovina.

The Management of the Bank consists of the Governor and Vice-Governors, appointed by the Governor with the approval
of the Governing Board. The Management operationally manages the Bank's activities

According to the Law on the Central Bank of Bosnia and Hezegovina, the Governor, with the approval of the Governing
Board, appoints the Chief Audit Executive and three Deputies.

The Bank operates through its Head Office, three main units located in Sarajevo, Mostar, and Banja Luka, and two
branches, one in Brdko District and other in Pale, the latter of which operates under the authorisation of the l\ilain Bank of
Republika Srpska of the Central Bank of Bosnia and Hezegovina in Banja Luka.

During the course of 2016 and 2017 and up to the date of this report, the Governing Board, Managemenl, Office of lhe
Chief Audit Executive and Audit Committee members are:

Governing Board

Senad Softi6 Ph D.

Ankica Kolobari6 M.Sc

Serif lsovi6 M.Sc.

Kemal Kozaric Ph.D.

Trivo Marinkovi6 M.Sc.

LjubiSa VladuSi6 Ph.D.

Chairman (from 1 'l August 20'15)

Member (from 1 1 August 2015)

Member (from 1 November 2017)

lvlember (until 31 October 2017)

l\ilember (from 1 '1 August 2015)

l\4ember (from 1 1 August 2015)

11



CENTRAL BANK OF BOSNIA AND HERZEGOVINA
Notes to the linancial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017

1. GENERALINFORMATION(CONTINUED)

Management

Senad Softic Ph.D.

Ernadina Bajrovi6 l\4.Sc.

Milica Laki6 Ph D.

Radomir BoU i6 Ph.D

Zelimira Raspudi6 M.Sc.

Ankica Kolobari6 M.Sc.

Office of the Chief Audit Executive

Anita Dujmovi6

Edis Kovadevi6 M.Sc.

Marica Buli6

Angela Medi6

Stojanka Sarovic

KrstinjaToSovi6

Audil Commiltee

Nilila GadZi6 Ph D

Sead Kreso Ph.D.

Radomir Repija

2. BASIS FOR PREPARATION

Governor (from 1 1 August 2015)

Vice-Governor (from 1 January 20'13)

Vice-Governor (from 1 June 20'16 until 15 June 20'17 and ftom 1 1 august 20.17)

Vice-Governor (until 16 February 2016 and from '16 June 2017 until 'lO August 20.17)

Vice-Governor (from 'l July 2017)

Vice-Governor (until 30 June 2017)

Chie, Audit Executive (ftom 24 October 2017)

Chief Audit Executive (until 30 Septembet 2017)

Deputy of the Chief Audit Executive (from 8 December 2017)

Oeputy of the Chief Audit Executive (until 30 November 2017)

Deputy of the Chief Audit Executive (from 4 September 2017)

Deputy of the Chief Audit Executive (until 2'l August 20'17)

Member (from 1 September 2015)

Member (from 1 September 2015)

Member (from 1 September 2015)

2.1. Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared in accordance with lnternational Financial Reporting Slandards
('lFRS") as published by the lnternational Accounting Standards Board.

2.2. Basis of measurcment

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the revaluation of certain financial
instruments and monetary gold, which are stated at fair value.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for assets

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. ln estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Bank takes into account the characteristics of
the asset or liability which market participants would take into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date

ln addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

. Level 'l inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Bank can
access at them easurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than guoted prices included in Level '1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inpuls are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

lMore detailed disclosures on fair value measurements of financial assets and liabilities are presented in Note 29.

't2



CENTRAL BANK OF BOSNIA AND HERZEGOVINA
Notes to the financial statements for lhe year ended 31 December 2017

2. BAS'S FOR PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

2-3. Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires Management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and their reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of revision
and future periods if the revision atfects both current and future periods

lnformation on amounts where signiricant uncertainty exists in their estimate and critical judgments in applying accounting
policies that have the most impact on the amounts disclosed in these financial statements are disclosed in Note 3.17

2.4. Functional and presentation currency

The Bank's financial statements are stated in the official national currency of Bosnia and Hezegovina which is the
Convertible Mark (KM). Allfinancial information has been rounded to the nearest thousand (unless othlrwise stated).

The official exchange rate of KM to the Euro (EUR) has been deflned by the Law on the Central Bank of Bosnia and
Hezegovina as KM 1.95583 = EUR 1 . As required by the Law, the Bank is obliged to purchase and sell Kl\il for EUR on
demand, without any restrictions, within the territory of Bosnia and Hezegovina, at the defined exchange rate.

The Law on the Central Bank of Bosnia and Hezegovina defines the operational rules for a "currency board' lo be used
for issuing KM, according to which KM is issued only with the purchase of convertible foreign exchanae cunency with full
coverage in net foreign assets.

2'5. Standatds, interyretations and amendments to published standards that are effective in the current
period

The following standards, amendments to the existing standards and interpretations issued by the lnternational Accounting
Standards Board are effective for the current period:

. Amendments to IAS 7: "Statement of Cash Flows'- Disclosure initiative (effeclive for annual periods beginning
on or after 'l January 20'17),

. Amendments to IAS 12: "lncome Taxes" - Remgnition of deferred tax assets for unrealised losses (effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017\,

. Amendments to IFRS 12; "Disclosure of interest in other entities" included in lhe 2014 - 2016 Annual
lmprovements Cycle - various standards (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017).

The application of these standards, amendments and interpretations has no significant impact on the financial statements
of the Bank in the current period.

2.6. Standatds and lnteryretations in issue not yet adopted

As at the date of authorization of these financial statements the following standards, revisions and interpretations have
been published by the IASB, but are not yet etfective and have not been adopted early by the Bank:

. IFRS 9: "Financial lnstruments" (effective for annual periods beginning on or afte|I January 2O1g),I IFRS 15: "Revenue from Contracts with Customers" (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018),

. IFRS 16: "Leases" (effective for annual periods beginning on or afte|I January 2019),
' Amendments to IFRS 2: ,, Share - based Payment" - Classiflcation and lveasurement of Share-based Payment

Transactions (effective for annual periods beginnjng on or after 1 January 20.l g),

' Amendments to IFRS 4: ,,lnsurance Contracts" - Applying IFRS g: ,,Financial lnstruments" with tFRS 4,,lnsurance
Contracts' (etfective for annual periods beginning on or after '1 January 2O18 or when IFRS 9:,, Financial
lnstruments" is first applied),

IJ



CENTRAL BANK OF BOSNIA AND HERZEGOVINA
Notes to the financial statements lor the year ended 91 December 2017

2. BASTS FOR qREPARATION (CONTTNUED)

2-6. Standatds and lnterpretations in issue not yet adopted (continued)

' Amendments to IAS 40: "lnvestment Property"- Transfers of lnvestment Property (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018),

' Annual improvements to IFRSS 2o14 - 2016 cycle - Amendments to IFRS 1 and IAS 28 (effective for annualperiods beginning on or after I January 2O.l 8),

' IFRIC 22 "Fo.eign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration' (effective for annual periods beginning on
or aftell January 2018),

' IFRIC 23 "Uncertainty over tax treatments (etfective for annual periods beginning on or afte|I January 2019),
' IFRS 17 "lnsurance Contracts" (effective for annual periods beginning on or aftei t January 2021),
' Amendments to IFRS '10: "Consolidated Financial Statements'and IAS 28: "lnvestments in Associates and Joint

Ventures' - Sale or contribution of Assets between an lnvestor and its Associate or Joint Venture (effective for
annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined).

The.Bank has elected not to adopt these standards, revisions and interpretations in advance of their effective dates. The
Bank anticipates that the adoption of these standards, revisions and inierpretations will not have i signin"rnt impact on
the financial statements of the Bank, excepl for IFRS 9

IFRS 9'Fin€ncial instruments" replaces IAS 3g "Financial instruments; Recognition and measurement" and is effeciive for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2o1s. IFRS t has introduced a new concept of classification and
measurement of financial assets and a new "expected credit loss' (ECL) model for the impairment of financial assets. The
Bank has adopted new accounting policies, implementing the requirements of IFRS g, effective as at 1 January 20lg.
The.Bank also assessed the impact of IFRS 9 on its flnan ial assets and upgraded and customized existing business
applications and adopted new regulations to include IFRS g requirements.

The Bank assessed the impact of IFRS g, in the following areas:

Classification and measuremenl of financial instruments on or afte|I January 2018 is based on new criteria that take into
account the contractual cash flows of llnancial instruments and the businesi model in which they are managed. IFRS 9
includes three principal classification categories for financial assets: measured at amortised 

"o.[ 1ecy, measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) and measured at fair value through profit anit toss 1fVCf1. lfRS O
eliminates the existing IAS 39 categories "at fair value through proflt or loss" (FVTPL), ";vaitabte{or-sate', (AFS),.hetd-to-
maturity investments", and "loans and receivables',.
Based on selected business models, the Bank has decided to classify its rlnancial assets into following categories as at 1
January 2018:

SDR with the IMF that were classified as loans and receivables and measured at amortised cost under IAS 39 are
measured at amortised cost under IFRS 9

Demand and term deposits with foreign banks that were classified as loans and receivables and measured at amortised
cost under IAS 39 are measured at amortised cost under IFRS 9.

Loans to employees that were classified as loans and receivables and measured at amortised cost under IAS 39 are
measured at amortised cost under IFRS g.

Debt securities that were classified as financial assets available-for sale and measured at fair value under IAS 39 are
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) under IFRS 9.

Debt securities that were classified as held-to maturity investments and measured at amortised cost under IAS 39 are
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) under IFRS g.

For equity instruments that were classified as financial assets available-for-sale under IAS 39 and were not held fortrldlng' the Bank irrevocably elected to present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income under
IFRS 9,

Nlonetary gold is part of foreign exchange reseryes of the Bank and is classifled as a financial asset. The Bank has
revised the current accounting policy for monetary gold and changed the accounting trealment of monetary gold, effective
from 1 January 2018, as follows:
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CENTRAL BANK OF BOSNIA AND HERZEGOVINA
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017

2. BAS,S FOR qREPARATION (CONTTNUED)

2-6. standards and lnterpretations rn rbsue not yet adopted (continued)

Monetary gold will be initially recognized at fair value, plus transaction cost directly attributable to the acquisition of the
gold. After initial recognition, the gold will be re-measured at fair value.

Unrealized gains and losses arising from changes in fair value, referring to the price changes of gold, will be recognized
in the revaluation reserve account within other comprehensive income. ln the event that-unrealised losses er"e6d th"
balance in the revaluation reserve, the Bank shall charge the excess against the period's profit available for distribution.

On the sale of gold, the Bank shall recycle existing unrealized gains and losses through profit and loss.

The fair value of monetary gold will be expressed in EUR, converted at the fixed rate of KM at the reporting date, and will
be measured at the last bid price for one ounce of gold (Oz) at the reporting date quoted on Reuters.

The effects of the adoption of the accounting policy for monetary gold will be recorded within the general reserves
(retained earnings) of the Bank as at 1 January 201 8.

lmpairment based on expected credit losses shall be recognized for the Bank's financial assets that are currenly
recognized as deposits with foreign banks, available-for-sale financial assets, held-tomaturity investments. lmpairment
for SDR in the lMF, loans to employees and other financial receivables is calculated using simplified approach.

lmplementation of IFRS g and change of accounting policy for monetary gold shall impact the opening balance of the
Bank's assets and equity on 1 January 2018.

IMPACT ON FINANCIAL ASSETS

ln thousands of KM
Restatement

of opening
balance

31 December
2017

1 January
2018

Foreign currency in cash

Deposits with foreign
banks

Special drawing rights
with the IMF

Financial assets
available-for-sale

Held{o-maturity
investments

Monetary gold

Other investments

236,402

2,698,650

1,531

6,202,071

1,214,062

203,908

27,813

- Foreign currency in cash

Deposits with foreign
(1,635) banks

Special drawing rights with
- the IMF

Financial assets at FVOCI

57,724

(50) Monetary gold

- Other investments

236,402

2,697,015

1,531

7,473,857

203,858

27,813

other financial assets 2,146 (30) other financial assets 2,716
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2.6.

CENTRAL BANK OF BOSNIA AND HERZEGOVINA
Notes to the financial statelne'lts for the yeat e ded 31 December 2417

BAS'S FOR PREPA RATION (CONTINUED)

Slandards and lnteryretations in issue not yel aclopted (contlnued)

IMPACT ON EQUITY AND RESERVES
ln thousands of KM

31 December
Restatement

of opening
2017 balance

1 January
2018

lnitial capital

General reserves
(Retained
eamings)

Other reserves
Fair value
reserves

Fair value
resenr'es - financial
assefs
available-for-sale

Fair value
reserve -
monetary gold

93,120 52,935

lnitial capital

General reseryes
(Retained
earnings)

Other reserves
Fair value
reserves

Fair value
reserves -
financial assets at
FVOCI
Provisions for ECL
- financial assets
at FVOCI
Revaluation
reseve - monetary

25,000

542,766

31,300

53,569

(39,551)

(36,477)

39,551 sold

25,000

506,289

31,300

146,055

141,765

4,250

TOTAL 652,635 56,009 TOTAL 708,644

Based on assessments undertaken to date, the total estimated adjustment of the adoption of IFRS 9 and adoption of the
accounling policy for monetary gold on the opening balance of the Bank's assets and equity at 'l January 2018 are as
follows:

Bank'assets:
- A decrease of deposits with foreign banks in the amount of KM 1,635 thousand related to ECL.
- An increase of financial assets at FVOCI in the amount ot KM 57,724 thousand related to classification of held{o
maturity investments under IAS 39 to financial assels at FVOCI due to fair value measurement calculation of these
investments.
- A decrease of monetary gold in ihe amount of KM 50 thousand related to the translation from USD to EUR currency.
- A decrease of other financial assets in lhe amount of KM 30 thousand related to the ECL.

Bank's equity:
- A decrease of general reserves in the lotal amount of KM 36,477 thousand related to:

. A decrease for impairment requirements with corresponding opening balances for financial assets measured al
amortised cost and FVOGI for ECL in the amount of KM 5,955 thousand

. An increase for the new method of the effective interest rate in the amount of KM 9,079 thousand. A decrease for adoption of the accounting policy for monetary gold in the total amount of KM 39,601 thousand
(KM 39,551 thousand revaluation reserve and KM 50 thousand foreign exchange difference)

- An increase of fair value reserves in the total amount of KM 52,935 related to:
. An increase of fair value reserves for financial assets at FVOCI in the amount of KM 57 ]24 thousand related to

classification of held{o maturity investmenls under IAS 39 to financial assets at FVOCI due to fair value
measurement calculation of these invesiments.

. A decrease for the new method of the effective interest rate in the amount of KM 9,079 thousand. An increase of provisions for ECL for financial assets at FVOCI in the amount of KM 4,290 thousand.
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CENTRAL BANK OF BOSNIA AND HERZEGOVINA
Notes to the linancial statements for the year ended 31 Decembet 2017

3. S'GA"F'CANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIES

The accounling policies set out below have been applied in the preparation and presentation of these financial
statements.

3.1. lntercst income and experses

lnterest income and expenses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss using the effective interest method. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments and receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset or liability (or, where appropriate, a shorter period) io the net carrying amounttf the
financial asset or liability. When calculating the etfective interest rate, the Bank estimates future cash flowi considering all
contractual terms of the financial instrument, but not future credit losses.

The calculation of the effec{ive interest rale includes all transaction costs and fees and points paid or received that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate Transaction costs include incremental costs that are direc y attributable to the
acquisition or issue of a financial asset or liability.

lnterest income and expenses presented in the statement of prolit or loss include interest on financial assets and financial
liabilities measured at amortized cost calculated on an effective interest basis

3.2. Fee and commission income and expenses

Fee and commission income and expenses that are integral part to the effective interest rate on a financial asset or
liability are included in the measurement of the effective interest rate.

Other fee and commission income and expenses mainly comprise fees earned and spent on domesiic and foreign
payment transactions and are re@gnized in the statement of profit or loss upon performance of the relevant service

3.3. Foreigncurrencytransactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate prevailing on the
settlement date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date
are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate applicable at that date. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the
date of the transaction and are not retranslated at the reporting date.

Foreign exchange differences arising on retranslation of transactions and the assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Middle exchange rate:

USD
soR

3.5. Financial instruments

31 December 2017
KM

1.63081
2.322489

3l December 2016
KM

1.85545
2.494348

3.4. Dividend income

Dividend income from equity securities is recognized in the statement of profit or loss when the Bank's right to receive
income is established.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Bank becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the financial instruments.
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CENTRAL BANK OF BOSNIA AND HERZEGOVINA
Notes to tho financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017

3. SIGNIF|CANTACCOUNTINGpOLtCtES(CONTTNUED)

3.5. Financialinstruments(continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are rnitially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities, except those classified at fair value through profit and
loss, are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or flnancial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs drrectly attnbutable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabil,ties at fair value
through profit or loss are recognized directly in profit or loss.

Method of effective interest rate

The etfective interest method is a method of calculating the amo(ized cost of a financial asset or a financial liability (or
group of rlnancial assets or financial liabilities) and of allocating interest income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts (including
all fees on points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial instruments, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to
the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability.

3.5.1 Financial assets

Financial assels are recognized and derecognized on the settlement date on which the purchase or sale of an instrument
is delivered to or by the Bank, and are initially measured at fair value, plus transaction costs, except for those financial
assets classified as at fair value through profit or loss, which are initially measured at fair value.

Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories: "at fair value through profit or loss" (FVTPL),
"available-for-sale" (AFS), "held-to-maturity investments", and'loans and receivables".

The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is delermined at the time of initial
recognition. As at 31 December 2017 and2016, the Bank has no financial assets at FVTPL.

Loans and receivables

Receivables (including deposits with foreign banks) that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market are classified as loans and receivables.

Loans and receivables are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs.

After initial recognition, loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method,
less any impairment lnterest income is recognized by applying the effeclive interest rate.

H e I 6to- m at uity i nv e stme nls

Government debt securities with flxed or determinable payments and fixed maturity dates that the Bank has the positive
intent and ability to hold to maturity are classilled as held-to-maturity investments Held-to-maturity investments are
recorded at amortized cost using the effective interest method less any impairment, with revenue recognized on an
effective yield basis

Financial assets available-lor-sale I"AFS')

Debt and equity securities held by the Bank are classified as being AFS and are stated at fair value. Fair value is
determined in the manner described in the Note 29 Unquoted equity instruments whose fair value cannot be reliably
determined are carried at cost, less impairment Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value of debt and equiti
securities are recognized in other comprehensive income in the fair value reserve account with the exception of
impairment losses, interest calculated using the effective interest rate method and foreign exchenge gains and losses on
financial assets, which are recognized directly in profit or loss. Where the investment is disposed oi oiis determined to be
impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in the fair value reserve account in other comprehensive
income is included in profit or loss for the period.
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CENTRAL BANK OF BOSNIA AND HERZEGOVINA
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 Decembet 2017

3. SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTiNGpOLtCtES(CONTTNUED)

3.5. Financialinstruments(continued)

3.5-1 Financialassets(continued)

Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognized in profit or loss when the Bank's right to receive payments is
estabhshed.

The fair value of AFS financial assets denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and
translated at the middle exchange rate at the reporting period date. The change in fair value attributable to translation
differences that result from a change in amortized cost of the asset is recognized in profit or loss and other changes are
recognized in equity.

lmpairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at each reporting date Financial assets are impaired where
there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the investment have been impacted

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

. srgnificant Ilnancial difficulty of the counterpa(y; or

. default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation

lndivrdually significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The remaining financial assets are
assessed collectively Those individually significant assets which are not identified as impaired are subsequently included
in the basis for collective impairment assessmenl. For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial
assets are grouped on the basis of similar credit risk characleristics.

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the amount of the impairment is the ditference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest
rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When a receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognized in profit or loss.

With the exception of AFS equity instruments, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss for debt
securities classified as AFS decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that
the carrying amount of the investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortized cost
would have been had the impairment not been recognized.

ln respect of AFS equity securities, any increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss is recognized in other
comprehensive income.

De-recoonition of financial assets

The Bank derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire; or it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity

3.5.2 Financialliabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities "al FVTPL" or'other financial liabit[ies" As at 3'1 December
2017 and 2016, the Bank has no financial liabilities at FVTPL
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CENTRAL BANK OF BOSNIA AND HERZEGOVINA
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017

stGNtFtcANT ACCOUNTTNG pOLtCtES (CONTTNUED)

F i na nc i al i nstru me nts ( c o nti n u ed)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Othe r lina ncial liabi lities

Other financial liabilities, including currency in circulation, deposits from the local banks and deposits from the
Government and other depositors, are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, with interest
expense recognized on an effective yield basis.

De-recoonition of fina ncial liabilities

The Bank derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Bank's obligations are discharged, cancelled or they
expire.

3.6. Monetary gold

Gold is initially recognized at cost, being the fair value of the consideration given including acquisition charges associated
with the investment. After initial recognition, the gold is re-measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes
in fair value, refening to price changes and foreign exchange differences from conversion from USD to Convertible l\rark
are recognized in the fair value reserve within other comprehensive income, until the gold is sold, when they are
recognized as realized gains or losses in the statement of profit or loss.

The fair value of monetary gold is expressed in American dollars (USD), converted at the middle exchange rate as
published by the Bank at the reporling date, and is measured at the last bid price for one ounce of gold (Oz) at the
reporting date quoted on Reuters.

Foreign exchange gains and losses from conversron of prices of gold from USD to Convertible Mark are recognized as a
pari of fair value adjustments in the fair value reserve in other comprehensive income.

3.7. Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following categories: giro accounts,
foreign currency in cash, foreign currency demand deposits, and deposits with maturity up to three months or less from
the date of acquisition and Special Drawing Rights in the lnternational Monetary Fund.

3.8. Propedy, equipment and intangible assets

Properties, equipment and intangible assets consist of assets obtained from the Bank's own funds and cash and non-
cash grants

Properties, equipment and intangible assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation/amortization and any
recognized accumulated impairment losses. Cost lncludes the purchase price and all costs directly related to bringing the
asset into operating condition for its intended use Maintenance and repairs, replacements and improvements of minor
importance are expensed as incurred. Significant improvements and replacement of assets are capitalized.

Assets in course of construction are reported at their cost of construction including costs charged by third parties Upon
completion, all accumulated costs of the asset are transferred to the relevant property and equipment c€tegory and
subsequently subject to the applicable depreciation rates.

Depreciation and amortization is provided on all assets, except land and assets in the course of construction, on a
straighlline basis at prescribed rate designed to write off the cost of the assets over their estimated useful lives The
estimated depreciation and amortization rates during 2016 and 2017 were as follows:
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CENTRAL BANK OF BOSNIA AND HERZEGOVINA
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017

3. SIGNIF|CANTACCOUNTINGpOLtCtES(CONTTNUED)

3.8. Property, equipment and intangible assets (continued)

Software
Other intangible assets
Buildings
Equipment
Furniture
Vehicles

20.ovo
20.ovo
'l .3o/. lo 4.0o/o

11 .00/o to 20.oo/d

10 .0o/o lo 12 .Sok

15.so/o

Gains and losses on disposal of property and equipment are recognized in the statement of profit or loss

The useful life of the property, equipment and intangible assets is reviewed and a justed on an annual basis at minimum,
if necessary, and it is applied prospectively.

3.9. lmpairment ol non-financiat assets

The carrying amounts of the Bank's non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there
is any indication of impairment. lf any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable a;ount is estimaied. An impairment
loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount.
lmpairment losses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

The recoverable amount of other assets is the gleater of their value in use and fair value less cost to sell. ln assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted lo their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessmenls of the time value of money and lhe risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does
not generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount
An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, as if no impairment loss had been recognired

3.10. Provisions fot liabilities and charges

Provisions are recognized when the Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events for
which it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows at a rate that reflects cunent market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the liability

Provisions for liabilities and charges are maintained at the level that the Bank's management considers sufficient for
absorption of incurred losses. The management determines the sufficiency of provisions on the basis of insight into
specilic items, current economic circumstances, risk characieristics of certain transaction categories, as well as other
relevant factors.

Provisions are released only for such expenditure in respect of which provisions are recognized at inception. lf the outflow
of economic benefits to settle the obligations is no longer probable, the provision is reversed.

3.11. Grants

Grants related to assets, including non-cash grants, are initially recognized as deferred income at fair value and are then
recognized as income from grants on a systematic basis over the useful life of the assets. Grants that compensate the
Bank for expenses incurred are recognized in the statement of profit or loss as income from grants on a systematic basis
in the same periods in which the expenses are recognized.

3.12. Taxes

According to Artlcle 69 of the Law on the Central Bank of Bosnia and Hezegovina, the Bank, its assets, property and
income, and its operations and transactions are exempt from all taxes and dutie!.
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CENTRAL BANK OF BOSNIA AND HERZEGOVINA
Notes to the linancial statements for the yeat ended 31 December 2017

3. SIGN|FICANTACCOUNTINGpOLtCtES(CONTTNUED)

3.13. Cufiency in circulation

The Bank administers the issue and withdrawal of domestic bank notes and coins The corresponding liability from the
issued cunency in circulation is recorded in the statement of financial position.

When currency is withdrawn from circulation, it is recognized as a liability as part of currency in circulation, until the formal
date of withdrawal. Any outstanding amount not withdrawn, after the formal due date, is recognized as income.

Costs related to the production and design of banknotes and coins are initially recognized as deferred costs which are
subsequently amortised through other operating expenses. From February 2O17 the Bank has rncreased the period for
amortisation of these costs from three to five years.

3.14. Managed funds for and on behalf of third parties

The Bank maintains certain accounts in foreign cunencies related to agreements concluded between the govemments of
Bosnia and Hezegovina and its constituent entities and foreign governments and Ilnancial organisations, as well as
foreign currency accounts of state institutions and agencies, and of commercial banks, for which the Bank acts as an
agent.

3.15. Employeebenefits

S hoft le rm e m p loyee be nefits

ln accordance with local regulations, on behalf of its employees, the Bank pays personal income tax and contributions for
pension, disability, health and unemployment insurance, on and from salaries, which are calculated as per the set legal
rates during the course of the year on the gross salary. The Bank pays those tax and contributions in the favour of the
institutions of the Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovina (on federal and cantonal levels), Republika Srpska and Brdko
District.

ln addition, meal allowances, transport allowances and vacation bonuses are paid in accordance with the domestic
legislation requirements These expenses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss in the period in which the
expense is incurred.

Lo ngle rm e m ploye e be nef its

According to local legal requirements, employees of the Bank are entitled to receive a one-time benefit on retirement,
provided legal conditions are met, such as the age or years of service, which in accordance with the Bank's internal Acts
is based on six regular monthly salaries paid to the respective employee in the last six months.

Such payments are treated as long-term employee benefits which are calculated annually by independent actuaries using
the projected unit credit method. The discount rate used in the calculation of the liability is based on interest rates oi
domestic corporate bonds and government bonds which exist on the market.

3.16. Financial arrangements of Bosnia and Hezegovina with the lnternational Monetary Fund

According to the financial arrangements made at the end of 2OO2 between Bosnia and Herzegovina and the lnternational
Monetary Fund CIMF), the statement of financial position of the Bank includes the following items related to Bosnia and
Hezegovina's membership of the INIF: holdings of Special Drawing Rights ("SDRS"), accrued interest on such SDR
holdings and the IMF No. 1 account and IMF No. 2 account

Other assets and liabilities related to the lMF, belonging to or being the responsibitity of Bosnia and Herzegovina, are
recorded in a special Trust Fund within off-balance-sheet records (see also Note 3O).

3.17. Critical accounting judgements and key source of estimation uncertaint t

ln the application of the Bank's accounting policies, which are described in Note 3, the Management is required to make
iudgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities th;t are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates
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CENTRAL BANK OF BOSNIA AND HERZEGOVINA
Notes to the financial sfatements for the year ended 31 December 2017

3. STGTVTFTCATVTACCOUNTINGpOLtCtES(CONTTNUED)

3.17. Critical accounting judgements and key source of estimation unceftainty (continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Key assumptions and estimates relating to material statement of financial position items are presented below.

Fair value of assefs

The Bank's policy is to disclose fair value information on those financial assets and financial liabilities for which public
market information is readily available or such value may be calculated by applying some alternative valuation
techniques, and whose fair value is materially different from their recorded amounts. According to the Bank's
management, amounts presented in the financial statements reflect the most reliable and useful estimate of fair value for
financial reporting purposes, in accordance with IFRS.

Depreciation and amoftisation charqe and rates applied

The calculation of depreciation and amortisation, as well as depreciation and amortisation rates are based on the
assessed economic useful life of property, equipment and intangible assets. Once a year, the Bank assesses economic
useful life based on current assumptions.

4. INTEREST INCOME AND EXPE'VSES

For the year ended
31 December

In thousands of KM

lnterest income arising from.
- financial assets available-for-sale (Note 12)
- held{o-maturity investments (Note 14)
- deposit with foreign banks
- other

Effects of negative interest rates from interest bearing
financial assets from:

- term deposits held with foreign banks
- demand deposits held with foreign banks

Effects of negative deposit interest rates on
deposits from local commercial banks

Net interest income 21,963 22,344

The base for calculation of interest on commercial banks' deposits includes the total deposits of commercial banks on
reserve accounts during the settlement period, which consists of required reserve amounts and excess above the
required reserves.

ln the period 0110112016-3010612016 the base for calculation of the required reserve of commercial banks consisted of
deposits and borrowings, except the borrowings received from non-residents and all funds placed by governments of
entities into development projects.

Rates of deposits and borrowed funds which constituted the base for required reserve calculation in the period
01 101 12016-301 061201 6 were as follows :

Short-term deposits and borrowings ,g:af)
Long-term deposits and borrowings 7.00

2017 2016

16,358
12,621

18
11

17,194
11,532

11

3
29,008

(8,887)
(2,s83)

28,740

(6,1 38)
(2,427)

(11,4701

4,425

(8,565)

2,169
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CENTRAL BANK OF BOSNIA AND HERZEGOVINA
Nofes fo the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017

4. TNTEREST TNCOME AND E)(PETVSES (CONTTNUED)

ln the period 0110112016-3010612016 the policy of calculating fees on the required reserves and on the amount exceeding
the required reserves to commercial banks has been amended in a way that the Bank will not calculate interest on those
items if the Bank did not invest in deposits up to one month due to lack of opportunities to achieve positive interest rate on
the market, or if, for any reason, the Bank achieved an average negative interest rate on deposits invested up to one
month.

From 1 May 2015 the fee on required reserves was calculated as the average of EONIA (Euro Over Night lndex Average)
recorded on the market less 10 basis points for the same period, or minimum zero, if the average of EONIA reduced by
10 basis points has a negative value, while the zero rate fee was calculated on the amount exceeding the required
reserve.

ln the period 0110712016-3111212017, the base for the required reserye calculation for commercial banks consists
deposits and borrowings regardless of fund currency expressed. Also, the unique required reserve rate of 10%
established to be applied by the Bank on the base for the required reserve calculation.

The Bank does not calculate the fee on the required reserve amount while the fee on the amount exceeding the required
reserve is calculated at the rate equal to 50% of the European Central Bank rate applied on commercial bank deposits.

Effects of negative interest rates from interest-bearing financial assets are the result of negative interest rates calculated
on term deposits and current accounts that could not be avoided according to cunent market circumstances.

Effects of negative deposit interest rates on deposits from local commercial banks are the result of the negative interest
rate on the amount exceeding the required reserve which amounted to 0.20% in the period 011O712016-31 11212017 .

5. FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME AND EXPE'VSES

For the year ended
31 December

ln thousands of KM

Fee and commission income:
- from local commercial banks
- from services for the Government and other non-banking clients

Fee and commission expenses:
- transactions with foreign banks

Net fee and commission income

2016

14,720 9,592

15,272 9,539

At the beginning of 2017, the Bank increased fee tariff for services provided to commercial banks and other non-banking
clients.

6. NET FORETGN EXCHANGE (TOSSES) / GATNS
For the year ended

31 December

2017 2016

of
is

2017

1,114 480
15,834 10,072

(562) (533)

(s52) (s33)

ln thousands of KM

lncome from foreign exchange differences
Expenses from foreign exchange differences

Net (losses) /gains

577
(1,137)

1,078
(1,018)

(560)

24
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7. OTHER INCOME

ln thousands of KM

Dividend income (Note 17)
lncome from grants
Other income

TOTAL

8. PERSO'VA'EI EXPEA'SES

ln thousands of KM

Salaries
Taxes and contributions
Other employee benefits
Provisions for severance payments (Note 21)

TOTAL

CENTRAL BANK OF BOSNIA AND HERZEGOVINA
Notes fo the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017

For the year ended
31 December

2017 2016

562
218
791

1,560 1,571

For the year ended
31 December

2017 2016

763
132
665

10,280
5,846
2,667

226

10,543
6,013
2,304

69

19,019 18,929

Personnel costs include KM 3,540 thousand (2016: KM 3,541 thousand) of defined pension contributions paid into the
public pension funds in Bosnia and Herzegovina. Contributions are calculated as percentage of the gross salary. As at 31
December 2017 lhe Bank had 367 employees (2016: 361 employees).

9. ADMINISTRAT'VE AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

In thousands of KM

Maintenance costs
Expenses for production and design of banknotes and coins
Other administrative and operating expenses

TOTAL

For the year ended
31 December

2017 2016

7,583

2,494
1,429
3,660

2,587
599

3,607

6.793

During 2017, lhe Bank determined that the needs for KM currency were projected for the five year period and were
successively placed into circulation, therefor, as at February 2017, the Bank has changed the number of years to which
expenses for production and design of banknotes and coins are deferred from three to five years. As a result of the
revised estimate, the expenses for production and design of banknotes and coins during the reporting period were lower
by KM 793 thousand than the expenses that would be recognized if the Bank applied three year period for amortisation.

lf the Bank had applied three year period for amortisation, expenses for production and design of banknotes and coins
would have been be higher in total by KM 2,329 thousand in the period of next two years.
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10. FOREIGN CURRENCY IN CASH

Foreign currency in cash relates to:

ln thousands of KM

Cash in vaults per currency:
- EUR
- CHF
- USD
- GBP

TOTAL 236,402

11. DEPOS'IS WITH FOREIG'VBAA'KS

Term and demand deposits with foreign banks, analysed by type of currency, are as follows:

ln thousands of KM 3i December
2017

31 December
2017

31 December
2016

236,330
36
19
17

194,768
40
21
17

194,846

31 December
2016

2,027,067 2,265,332
Term deposits:

- EUR

Demand deposits:
- EUR
- USD
- Other currencies

TOTAL

ln thousands of KM

Up to 1 month
Fromlto2months
From2 to 3 months
From3to4months
From 4 to 12 months

TOTAL

2,027,067

666,153
2,921
2,509

2,265,332

699,28s
4,286
1,494

671,583 705,065

2,698,650 2,970,3y

Term deposits with foreign banks, analysed by remaining contractual maturity, are as follows:

31 December
2017

31 December
2016

993,768
136,200
449,303
'117,154
330,642

742,008
644,529
683,351

195,444

2,027,067 2,265,332

During 2017 lhe negative interest rates on demand deposits ranged from 0.74o/o p.a. to 0.30% p.a. (2016: negative
interest rates from 0.68% p.a. to 0.20% p.a.) and on term deposits negative interest rates ranged from 0.65% p-.a. to
0.36% p.a. (2016: from 0.54o/o p.a. to 0.34% p.a.).

Deposits with foreign banks include negative accrued interest in the amount KM 1,580 thousand as at 31 December 2017
(2016: included negative accrued interest in the amount KM 1 ,679 thousand).

The average negative effective yield rate on deposits amounted to 0.43% (2016: negative effective yield rate 0.39%).
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11. DEPOSTTS WffH FORETGTVBANKS ( CONTTNUED)

Deposits with foreign banks analysed by the type of the bank invested in, are as follows:

ln thousands of KM 31 December
2017

Commercial banks
Central banks

TOTAL

1,430,350

CENTRAL BANK OF BOSNIA AND HERZEGOVINA
Noles to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017

31 December
2016

1 ,114 ,7 51

1,268,300 1,855,646

2,598,650 2,97O,397

Deposits with foreign banks can be analysed on a geographical basis as follows:

!n thousands of KM

Luxembourg
Term deposits
Demand deposits

France
Term deposits
Demand deposits

SwiE.erland
Term deposits
Demand deposits

Germany
Term deposits
Demand deposits

Netherlands
Term deposits
Demand deposits

Great Britain
Term deposits
Demand deposits

USA
Term deposits
Demand deposits

Total term deposits

Total demand deposits

TOTAL

78,137 78,073
547,319

525,373
1,538

78,073

586,048
4,180

526,911

434,215

590,228

664,357
329,620

434,215

97,662

993,977

390,047

97,662

97,649

390,047

97,649

1,386
1,386

2,027,067 2,265,332

671,583 705,065

2,598,650 2,970,3y

31 December
2017

31 December
2016

837,201
156,307

624,880
293,192

993,508

469j82

918,072
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12. FINANCIALASSETSAVAILABLE.FOR-SALE

Financial assets available-for-sale are quality instruments with a high degree of marketability and liquidity, with a credit
rating from AAA to BBB (Fitch). The portfolio includes short-term and long{erm debt securities with a fixed interest rate,
which are issued by the governments of other foreign countries. Financial assets available-for-sale are denominated in
EUR.

The structure of the financial assets available-for-sale is as follows:

ln thousands of KM

Debt securities
Accrued interest

TOTAL 6,202,07',|.

The average effective yield rate on financial assets available-for-sale amounted to 0.35% (2016:0.48o/o).

Financial assets available-for-sale can be analysed on a geographical basis as follows:

31 December2017 31 December 2016

31 December
2017

31 December
2016

6,143,154
58,9'17

4,986,018
39,811

5,025,829

France
Belgium
Germany
Spain
Austria
Netherlands
Italy
Finland
Slovakia

TOTAL

ln thousands of KM

1,654,622
976,6s2
732,285
728,413
644,753
565,017
552,722
341,643

5,964

% ln thousands of KM

26.67 1 ,136,535
15.75 1,011,011
11.81 541 ,175
11.74 900,412
10.40 438,424
9.11 177,704
8.91 585,423
5.51 229,082
0.'t0 6,063

otlo

22.61
20.12
10.77
17.92

8.72
3.54

11.64
4.56
0.12

6,202,071 100.00

Movements in fair value of financial assets available-for-sale can be analysed as follows:

ln thousands of KM

Opening balance as at 1 January
Purchases during the year
Sales during the year
lnterest income recognized during the year (Note 4)
Collected principal and interest
Fair value adjustment

Closing balance as at 31 December

5,025,829 100.00

2017 2016

5,025,929
3,887,900
(470,08e)

16,358
(2,242,037)

(1s,8e0)

6,145,872
4,342,772
(330,016)

17,194
(5,203,667)

53,674

6,202,071 5,025,829

Net realized gains from the sale of financial assets available-for-sale in 2017 amounted to KM 2,587 thousand (2016: KM
8,383 thousand).
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13. MONETARYGOLD

The Bank holds monetary gold in a bank in Switzerland which is physically held in a vault at the Bank of England. The
value of the monetary gold as at 31 December 2017 amounts to KM 203,908 thousand, representing 96,000 ounces of
gold at KM 2,124 per ounce (2016: KM 205j02 thousand representing 96,000 ounces of gold at KM 2,136 per ounce).

Movements in fair value of monetary gold can be analysed as follows:

ln thousands of KM
2017 2016

Opening balance as at 1 January
Purchases during the year
Fair value reserves - monetary gold

- Changes in prices of gold
- Foreign exchange (/osses) / gains from conversion USD / KM

Closing balance as at 31 December

14. HELD.TO-MATURITYINVESIMEIVIS

The structure of the held{o-maturity investments is presented as follows:

ln thousands of KM

Debt securities
Accrued interest

TOTAL

(26,581) 8,480

203,908 205,102

205,102

25,387

182,315

14,307

All heldtomaturity investments are with credit rating from AAA to BBB (Fitch) and are denominated in EUR.

31 December
2017

31 December
2016

1,206,306
7,756

1,124,596
7.732

1,214,062

The average effective yield rate on held-to-maturity investments amounted to 1 .04o/o (2016: 1.O1o/o).

Held-to-maturity investments can be analysed on a geographical basis as follows:

31 December 2O17

1,132,328

31 December2O16

France
Italy
Belgium
Finland
Austria
Netherlands

TOTAL

ln thousands of KM

411,431
216,636
203,629
180,686
161,278

40,402

% ln thousands of KM

33.90 321,083
17.84 221,688
16.77 204,721
14.88 181 ,263
13.28 162,106
3.33 41.467

otlo

28.36
19.57
18.08
16.01
14.32
3.66

1,214,062 100.00 1,',132,329 100.00

Movements in held-to-maturity investments can be analysed as follows:

ln thousands of KM

Opening balance as at 1 January
Purchases during the year
lnterest income recognized during the year (Note 4)
Collected principal and interest

Closing balance as at 31 December

(21,607) (21,3e5)

1,132,328

2017 2016

1,132,329
90,720
12,621

1,142,191

11,532

1,214,062
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15. OTHERASSETS

ln thousands of KM

Prepaid expenses
Receivables from domestic banks
Numismatic collections
Other miscellaneous assets
Giro accounts
Loans to employees
Advances
Receivables from employee based on domestic currency deficit
Less: lmpairment of other receivables

TOTAL

31 December
2015

7,931
1,690

764
236
598
436

1

600
(600) (600)

11,655 4,626

As at 31 December 2017, prepaid expenses include expenditure of KM 7,564 thousand incurred on the production of
banknotes and coins (31 December 2016. KM 141 thousand incurred on the production of coins). As explained in Note
3.13, starting from February 2017, such costs are initially deferred and subsequently amortized over a period of five years
(2016: three years).

31 December
2017

1,306
1,036

885
378
376
640

5
600
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16. PROPERTY, EQUIPMENT AND INTANG'BLEASSEIS

Land
and

Equipment
and

furniture Vehicles

Assets
under

construc-
Property and

equipment

Softurare
and other lntangible
intangible assets under

assets construction

lntangible
assets

totalOther tion total TOTAL

42,992

ln thousands of KM

Cost
As at 1 January 2016
Additions
Write offs
Transfers

As at 31 December 2016
Additions
Write offs
Transfers

As at 31 December 2017
Accumulated depreciation
and amoftization
As at 1 January 2016
Charge for the year
Write offs

As at 31 December 2016
Charge for the year
Write offs

As at 31 December 2017
Net book value

As at 1 January 2017

As at 31 December 2017

23,816
800

(2,040)
48

1,257
(3e6)

553

1,827

1

425
(327)

945
9

(34)

920
45
(e)
41

997

114
1,763

661

682

69,694
2,572

(2,074)

192
2,550
(732)

72,O10

14,219
147

(1 03)

14,219
192

(1 03)

550
(121)

83,913
2,764

(2,177)

3,1 00
(8s3)

747

45

313
(121)

46

45
237

236 737

3,616
506

19,830
1,'189
03

1,681
57

25,775
1,806

13,3'10
307

103

13,310
307

I

39,08s
2,113

2,17

648
54

4,122 18 1 9qq
54

1. 13,514
2725'18 1 ,111 1,763

13,514
272 2,035

121 121

251

283

As at 31 of December 2017 and 2016, the Bank has no encumbrances over its property, equipment and intangible assets.
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17. OTHER INVESTMENTS

The structure of other investments is as follows:

ln thousands of KM

Equity securities:

Shares in Bank for lnternational Settlements (BlS), Basel (Note 23)
Shares in SWIFT

TOTAL

Currency placed into circulation - opening balance as at 1 January
lncrease in currency in circulation during the year

Currency placed into circulation - balance as at 31 December

31 December
2017

31 December
2016

27,803
10

27,803
10

27,813 27,813

Equity securities are composed of ordinary Bank for lnternational Settlements (hereinafter: BIS) shares with a nominal
value of SDR 5,000 per share (paid up at25o/o of their nominal value). BIS and SWIFT shares represent unquoted equity
instruments whose fair value cannot be reliably determined and therefore are carried at cost.

SWIFT shares are composed of two ordinary shares and their total value is KM 10 thousand.

During the year the Bank received dividend income from BIS in the amount of KM 763 thousand (2016: KM 562
thousand) (Note 7).

18. CURRENCY IN CIRCULATION

Currency in circulation can be analysed as follows:

ln thousands of KM
2017 20'16

4,065,804
252,556

3,499,468
567,336

4,319,360 4,066,904

Of the total currency placed into circulation of KM 4,319,360 thousand as at 31 December 2017,KM 605 thousand was
placed into circulation outside of Bosnia and Hezegovina (2016: KM 605 thousand out of KM 4,066,804 thousand).

31 December2017 31 December 2016

Nominal
value

0.05
0.10
0.20
0.50

1

2
5

Pieces Value in
thousands of KM Pieces Value in

thousands of KM

Coins
Coins
Coins
Coins
Coins
Coins
Coins

Banknotes
Banknotes
Banknotes
Banknotes
Banknotes

TOTAL

64,264,227
96,699,045
70,032,596
33,609,811
47,884,620
13,585,230
't0,020,723

1 1,150,353
8,718,265

'18,379,804

21,225,491
4,115,492

3,213
9,670

14,O07
16,805
47,885
27,',t70
50,1 04

111,504
174,36s
918,990

2,122,s49
823,098

58,005,994
90,219,478
65,465,345
31,728,243
44,751,826
12,654,299
9,212,158

10,635,610
8,483,902

18,230,190
19,475,164
3,873,719

2,900
9,022

13,093
15,864
44,752
25,309
46,061

106,356
169,678
91 '1 ,510

1,947,515
774,744

10
20
50

100
200

4,065,804399,695,657 4,319,360 372,735,929
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19. DEPOS'TS FROM BAA'KS

The structure of deposits from banks is provided in the following table:

ln thousands of KM

Deposits of local commercial banks
Reserve accounts of organizational units of the Bank
Special deposit of local commercial banks - blocked funds

TOTAL

ln thousands of KM

Deposits for the budget of BH lnstitutions
Deposits of other governments and government institutions
Deposits of public institutions
Deposit account under lnternational Monetary Fund transactions

TOTAL

ln thousands of KM

Opening balance as at 1 January
Compensations paid
Net charge to the statement of profit or loss (Note 8)
Provisions for employees' payments
Provisions for litigations

Closing balance as at 31 December

31 December
2017

31 December
2016

s,032,593
436

36

4,268,467
640

36

5,033,065 4,269,1fi

Deposits of local domestic commercial banks are placed in accordance with obligatory reserve requirements for those
banks to meet obligations for settling debts and for the transactions between commercial banks and the Bank. On 31
December 2017 lhe total amount of KM 5,032,593 thousand represents deposits of 24 banks (2016: KM 4,269,467
thousand represented deposits of24 banks).

lnterest on deposits from local commercial banks is calculated according to the Law on the Central Bank of Bosnia and
Hezegovina which was not calculated in the period 01/01/2016-3ot}Ol2016 and in the period 01lO712016-31t12t2017 was
calculated on the amount exceeding the required reserve. Calculation policy changes on interest rates on deposits placed
by local commercial banks during the reporting periods are provided in Note 4.

Deposits from banks include negative accrued interest in the amount KM 449 thousand as at 31 December 2017 (31
December 2016: included negative accrued interest in the amount KM 376 thousand).

20. DEPOS'IS FROM THE GOVERNMENT AND OTHER DEPOS'TORS

The structure of deposits from the Government and other depositors is provided in the following table:

31 December
2017

31 December
20,,6

448,079
100,503
76,120

b

460,478
77,940
51,968

6

624,709 590,392

21. PROYIS'OilS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES

Provisions for liabilities and charges relate to provisions for employees' severance payments and provisions for potential
liabilities on litigations.

Litigations
The Bank is a defendant in several legal proceedings arising from its operations. The Bank contests these claims and
based on legal advice considers that no other material liabilities will be incurred, except for the amount of KM 150
thousands already provided for in 2016,

Movement in provisions for liabilities and charges is presented below:

2017 2016

1,611
(1 87)

226

1,452
(60)

69
1,650 1,461

150

1,650 1,611
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22. OTHER LIABILITIES

The structure of other liabilities is presented in the following table:

ln thousands of KM

Liabilities based on allocation of profit to the state budget (Note 24)
IMF Accounts No. 1 and 2 (Note 30)
Suppliers
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Deferred income
World Bank deposits
Liabilities to employees

TOTAL

23. EQUITY AND RESERYES

The structure of equity and reserves is presented in the following table:

ln thousands of KM

lnitialcapital
General reserves (Retained earnings)
Other reserves
Fair value reserves

Fair value reserves - financial assefs available-for-sale
Fair value reseryes - monetary gold

TOTAL

31 December
2017

31 December
2016

7,311
1,s93
1,533

419
300

56

8,437
1,711
1,493

229
416
447
943

11,212 13,676

31 December
2017

31 December
2016

25,000
542,766
31,300
53,569
93,1 20

(39,551)

2s,000
537,892
31,300
73,240

111,597
(38,357)

652,635 667,432

lnitial capital

lnitial capital represents nominal capital pald in on '12 June 1998 in accordance with the Law on Central Bank of Bosnia
and Hezegovina.

General reserues ( Retained earninqs)

General reserves (Retained earnings) comprise accumulated undistributed profits of the Bank since the beginning of its
operations on 1 1 August 1997.

Other reserues

Other reserves relate to following:

' reserves from grants in the amount of KM 3,497 thousand, which relate to grants received in cash from the Council of
Ministers of Bosnia and Hezegovina on 12 June 1998. The status of these reserves is regulated bythe Decision of
the Governing Board of the Bank with the approval of the Presidency of Bosnia and Herzegovina. The right to utilise
the reserves from grants fall within the competence of the Governing Board of the Bank.

o amounts received in accordance with the Succession Agreement of the former Yugoslavia in the amount of KM
27,803 thousand and relates to shares in Bank for lnternational Settlements Brussels latS;, aaset (see also Note 17).

Fair value reserves

Fair value reserves represent unrealized gains or losses incurred as a result of measurement of the financial assets
available-for-sale and monetary gold.
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24. PROFIT ALLOCATION

The allocation of the net profit is carried out in accordance with the Law on the Central Bank of Bosnia and Hezegovina

The provisions of the above mentioned Law define the criteria of the net profit allocation, according to which the Bank
allocates 60% of the current profit to the account of the institution responsible for the Budget of Bosni"a and Hezegovina,
provided that the amount of the initial capital and general reserves (retained earnings) is equal to 5 oo% of the total
monetary liabilities.

This ratio, before the proflt allocation in 2017 amounted to 5.64% (2016: 624%). According to the Decision of the
Governing Board 60% of the net profit for the finan cial yeat ol2017 in the amount of kM 7,31 1 th"ousanJ (2016: KM 8,437
thousand) was allocated to the state budget, and 4o%, i.e. the amount of KM 4,874 thousand was allocated to the general
reserves (retained earnings) of the Bank (20j6: KM 5,625 thousand).

2017

Before prof it al loc ati o n

Mgngtary tiabitities (currency in circutation and domestic deposits) t'" tn"""t:;#,f$
lnitial capital and general reserves (retained earnings) 562,892
Ratio - initial capital and general reserves (retained earnings) / monetary liabilities S.64yo

Profit allocation

Net profit before aflocation 
(in thousands of KM)

12,185
Allocation of profit to the state budget 7 511
Allocation of profit to general reserves (retained earnings) 4,874

Aftet profit allocation
(in thousands of KM)

lnitial capital and general reserves(retained earnings) 567,766
Ratio ' lnitial capital and general reserves (retained earnings)/ monetary liabilities 5.89%

2016

Before prctit allocation
(in thousands of KM)

Monetary liabilities (Currency in circulation and domestic deposits) 8,926,33i
lnitial capital and general reserves(retained earnings) 552,267
Ratio - initial capital and general reserves (retained earnings) / monetary liabilities 6.z4yo

Profit allocation

Net profit before arocation 
(in thousands of KM)

Attocation of proftt to the state budget 't:,il?
Allocation of profit to general reserves (retained earnings) 5,625

After profit allocation

rnitiar capitar and generar reserves (retained earnings) 
(in thousands of Kl\il)

562,892
Ratio - lnitial capital and general reserves (retained earnings) / monetary liabilities 6.31yo
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25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise of:

ln thousands of KM

Foreign currency deposits with maturity up to three months
or less from the date of acquisition
Foreign currency demand deposits
Foreign currency in cash
Special Drawing Rights in the lnternational Monetary Fund
Giro accounts

TOTAL

26. CURRENCYBOARDARRANGEMENT

The Law on the Central Bank of Bosnia and Hezegovina
shall at no time exceed its net foreign exchange reserves.

Details of compliance with the rule are as follows:

In thousands of KM

31 December
2017

31 December
2016

1 ,1 51 ,332
671,583
236,402

1,531
436

2,069,888
705,065
194,846

2,642
640

2,061,294 2,973,091

requires that the aggregate amount of its monetary liabilities

31 December 3l December
2017 2016

Foreign assets
Liabilities to non-residents

Net foreign exchange reserves (foreign assets minus liabilities to non-residents)

Monetary liabilities

Net foreign assets (net foreign exchange reserves minus monetary liabilities)

10,556,624
1,649

10,554,975

9,977,133

577,842

9,531,14
2,158

9,528,986

8,926,339

602,647

The monetary liabilities of the Bank, according to the Law on the Central Bank of Bosnia and Hezegovina, consist of
cutrency in circulation and the domestic deposits from banks and other residents.

27. REATED PARTY TRA'VSACT'O'VS

ln the normal course of its operations, the Bank enters into transactions with related parties. Having in mind that the Bank
has been established by a Legal Act passed by Parliamentary Assembly of Bosnia and Hezegovina and that the initial
capital has been paid up by the Council of Ministers of Bosnia and Hezegovina, transactions performed as part of regular
operations of the Bank with the state and state institutions represent related party transactions. ln addition, the Bank
considers that it has an immediate related party relationship with its key management personnel, close family members of
key management personnel, and entities controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by key management
personnel and their close family members.

Transactions with the state and state institutions are disclosed in the following table:
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27. RELATEDpARTyTRANSACTTONS(CONTTNUED)

ln thousands of KM

2017

State
Sfate rnsfifutions

lndirect taxation authority of Bosnia and Herzegovina
Deposit lnsurance Agency of Bosnia and
Hezegovina

TOTAL

!n thousands of KM

2016

State
State institutions

lndirect taxation authority of Bosnia and Hezegovina
Deposit lnsurance Agency of Bosnia and
Hezegovina

TOTAL

Exposure Liabilities lncome Expenses

- 492,837

10,146

- 45,879

- 502,124

22,839

_ 23,288

- 549,962

Exposure Liabilities lncome Expenses

- 549,251

Remuneration of kev manaqement members

The total remuneration of the members of the key personnel (members of Management and Governing Board) in 2017
amounted to KM 991 thousand, out of which KM 626 thousand was related to salaries and other remuneration and KM
365 thousand to taxes and contributions (in 2016 out of total amount of KM 898 thousand the amount of KM 562
thousand was related to salaries and other remuneration and KM 336 thousand was related to taxes and contributions).
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28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Bank's statement of financial position is largely comprised of financial instruments. These instruments expose the
Bank to a number of financial risks, including credit risk, market risks and liquidity risk.

28.1. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Bank if counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligation and rises principally from the Bank's deposits with other banks and investments into securities (foreign
currency reserves). The management of this risk is performed through the selection of counterparties with sound credit
ratings assigned by internationally recognized rating agencies, by limiting the maturity, and by controlling the volume and
the dynamics of investment. The credit ratings monitored on a daily basis.

For the funds recorded in off-balance sheet records, the Bank is not exposed to credit risk, as all the risk, which may
result from the investments of these funds, is to be borne contractually by the owners of these funds (see also Note 30).

28.1 .1. Credit risk concentration

The Bank is exposed to credit risk through the financial statement items that meet the definition of its financial assets.

Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other credit enhancements

The following table shows the maximum exposure to credit risk by type of financial assets:

Maximum exposure

ln thousands of KM

Carrying amounts
Foreign currency in cash
Deposits with foreign banks
Special Drawing Rights with the lnternational Monetary Fund
Financial assets available-for-sale
Monetary gold
Held-to-maturity investments
Other investments
Other financial assets

TOTAL

31 December
2017

31 December
2016

236,402
2,698,650

1,531
6,202,071

203,908
1,214,062

27,813

194,846
2,970,397

2,642
5,025,829

205,102
1,132,328

27,813
2,746 2.217

10,587,1 83 9,55',1,174

The Bank does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements to cover this credit risk. As at 31 December 2017 the
Bank has a claim amounted to KM 25 thousand which is past due (31 December 2016: the Bank does not have any
assets that are either past due or impaired).

Concentration of credit risk

The deposits placed with foreign banks in total amounted to KM 2,698,650 thousand as at 31 December 2017 (2016: KM
2,970,397 thousand). The largest portion of these funds is invested in one foreign bank with individual exposure
exceeding total equity and reserves of the Bank (2016: two foreign banks had individual exposures exceeding total equity
and reserves ofthe Bank).

lndividual credit risk concentration exceeding total capital and reserves of the Bank:

31 December2017 31 December2016
Bank rating

AAA
ln thousands of KM

993,508

o/o of total Bank rating ln thousands of KM % of total
30.91
28.94

36.81% AAA 918,072
AAA 859,501
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28. RiSK MANAGEMENT (CONTTNUED)

28.1. Credit risk (continued)

28.1.1. Credit risk concentration (continued)

Concentration per credit rating

The table below presents an analysis of the Bank's concentratlon per credit rating for its financial assets as at 3l
December 2017 (in thousands of KM).

The table below presents an analysis of the Bank's concentration per credit rating for its financial assets as at 31
December 2016 (in thousands of KM).

Gredit
ratino

Foreign
currency

in cash

Deposits
with

foreign
banks

Special
Drawing

Rights
with the

IMF

Financial
assets

available-
for-sale

Monetary
qold

Held-to-
maturity

investments
Other

investments

Other
financial

assets TOTAL

AAA 1,715,536 1.297.302 40,402 3,053,240

AA+ 986,396 341,964 1,328,360

AA 78,137 1,654,622 411,431 2,241,939

AA- 97.662 976,652 203,629 1,277.943

A+ 5,964 5,964

A 566,83'l 469,182

A- 238,946 238,946

1 1,538 1,531 203,908 27.813 234,790

BBB+ 728,413 728,413

BBB 552,722 216,636 759,359

Unrated 236,402 2,746 239,149

TOTAL 236,402 2,699,650 1,531 6,202.071 203,908 1,2',14,062 27,813 2,746 1 0,587,183

I lnternational institutions
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28. R|SK MANAGEMENT (CONTTNUED)

28.1. Credit risk (continued)

28.1.1. Credit risk concentration (continued)

Geographical concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure

The following table breaks down the Bank's main credit risk exposure at their carrying amounts, as categorized by
geographical region as at 31 December 2017 and 2016. For the purposes of this disclosure, the Bank hal allocated
exposures to regions based on the country of domicile of its counterparties:

Credit
ratinq

Foreign
currenGy

in cash

Deposits
with

foreign
banks

Special
Drawing

Rights
with the

IMF

Financial
assets

available-
for-sale

Monetary
oold

Held-to-
maturity

investments
Other

investments

Other
financial

assets TOTAL

AAA 2,363,620 718,879 41,467 3,123,966

AA+ 667,506 343,369 1,010,875

AA 78,073 1,136,535 321,083 1,535,691

AA- 390,047 1,01 1,011 204,721 1,605,779

A+ 6,063 6,063

A

A- 134,477 134,477

12 4,180 2.642 205,102 27,813 239,737

BBB+ 900.412 9OO,412

BBB 585,423 221,688 807.111

Unrated 194,846 2,217 197,063

TOTAL 194,846 2,970,397 2,642 5,025,829 205,102 1,132,328 27,813 2.217 9,561,174

ln thousands of KM EU countries
Non-EU member

countries
Bosnia and

Herzeoovina Total
Foreiqn currencv in cash 236,402 236,402
Deposits with foreiqn banks 2,170,353 528,297 2,698,650
SDR with the IMF 1,531 1,531
Available-for-sale financial
assets 6,202,071 6.202.071
Monetary gold 203,908 203,908
Held-to-maturity investments 1,214,062 1,214,062
Other investments 10 27,803 27,813
Other financial assets 2.746 2,746
31 December2017 9,586,496 761.539 239,148 10,587.183
31 December2016 8,538,336 825,775 197.063 9,561.174

2lnternational institutions
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28. RI S K MAN AG EM E NT ( C O NT I N U E D)

Ma*et risk28.2.

The Bank monitors and manages both currency and interest rate risks as the basic market risk factors. Currency risk is a
risk arisrng from decline of the value of the financral instrument denominated in foreign currency due to changes in
exchange rates. The interest rate risk denotes a risk from reducing the market value of the financial instruments due to
unfavourable movements of interest rates. The market risk management is performed by setting quantitative limits for
foreign assets risk exposure acceptable for the Bank and they are monitored on a daily basis The ;biective of market risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures with acceptable parameters, while optimising the return on
risk.

For the purpose of quantifying the market risks effect on the foreign reserves value, starting from 2017 , lhe Bank applies
the Value at Risk (VaR) concept. VaR represents a statistical methodology ror assessing the maximum change in the
,oreign reserves value arising from differences in the financial instruments prices and the foreign exchange ratei given a
certain level of confidence and a particular time horizon The Bank, when calculating VaR, applies a level of confidence of
99% and a '1o-day horizon, as recommended in the Basel ll Standard

The fluctuation of the prices of the instruments and the foreign exchange rates are determined according to the historical
changes in the prices and the foreign exchange rates for instruments and currencies comprising the foieign reserves at
the end of the month.

As at 31 December 2017, the exposure of the foreign reserves managed by the Bank (Value at Risk at a level of
confidence of 99% for a '1o-day horizon), in terms of fluctuations of the prices of instruments and foreign exchange rates
against the Kl\4 equals KM 28,045 thousands (2016: KM 33,606 thousand), ot o 260/0 ot the foreign reserves (2016:
0.35% of the foreign reserves). VaR originates from the change in the foreign exchange rate for the same horizon, on a
diversified basis and included change in the price of gold, as well as from the change in the prices of instruments in which
the foreign reserves are invested.

ln thousands of KM 31 December 2017 31 December 2016
Currency risk 911 13.922
lnterest rate risk 27 ,134 19,684
Total VaR 28,O45 33,606

28.2- Market sk

28.2.1. Forcign exchange isk

The Bank is exposed to currency risk through transactions in foreign currencies. This is the risk that the value of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Foreign currency exposure arises from
deposits and investment activities.

The control and management of the foreign exchange risk is based on the strict adherence to the provisions of the Law
on the Central Bank of Bosnia and Hezegovina and the Guidelines of the Bank on investment of the foreign exchange
reserves

The above framework defines the limits for holding assets and liabilities in each foreign currency. The biggest part of
monetary assets is held in EUR, and the maximum amount that can be held in other convertible currencieq subject to
the changes in the market rate, must not exceed 50% of the total amount of the capital and the reserves of the Ba;k.

The Bank had the following foreign currency position as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016.
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28. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTTNUED)

28.2. Market risk (continued)

28.2.1 . Foreign exchange risk (continued)

31 December2017

ln thousands of KM

Foreign currency in cash
Deposits with foreign banks
Special Drawing Rights with the
lnternational Monetary Fund
Financial assets available-for-sale
Monetary gold
Held-to-maturity investments
Other investments
Other financial assets

Total financial assets

Currency in circulation
Deposits from banks
Deposits from the Government and other
depositors
Other financial liabilities

Total fi nancial liabilities

NET FOREIGN EXCHANGE POSITION

10,345,774 206,949 4,093 30,468 10,587,183

4,319,360 4,319,360
5,033,065 5,033,065

eo; ; -"3:333 'it',iil
902 9,986,738 9,987,643

10,34,972 206,945 4,093 (9,956,270) 599,540

EUR USD KM Total

Other
foreign

currencies

236,330
2,693,220

6,202,071

1,214,062
10
81

19
2,921

203,908

53
2,509

1,531

- 236,402
- 2,698,650

- 1,531
- 6,202,071
- 203,908
- 1,214,062

27 ,803 27,813
2,665 2.746

31 December2016

ln thousands of KM

Foreign currency in cash
Deposits with foreign banks
Special Drawing Rights with the
lnternational Monetary Fund
Financial assets available-for-sale
Monetary gold
Held-to-maturity investments
Other investments
Other financial assets

Total financial assets

Currency in circulation
Deposits from banks
Deposlts from the Government and other
depositors
Other financial liabilities

Total financia! liabilities

NET FOREIGN EXCHANGE POSITION

EUR USD

Other
foreign

currencies KM Total

194,768
2,964,617

5,025,829

1,132,328
10

21
4,286

205,102

57
1,494

2,642

- 194,846
- 2,970,397

- 2,642
- 5,025,829
- 205,102
- 1,132,328

27,803 27,813
2,217 2.217

9,317,552 209,409 4,193 30,020 9,561,174

483

4,066,804 4,066,804
4,269,143 4,269,143

590,392 590,392
3 3; 12.518 13,043

483 3 39 9,939,957 9,939,382

9,317,069 209,406 4,154 (8,908,837) 621,792

The Bank is not exposed to EUR foreign currency risk due to currency board arrangement aligning KM to EUR at fixed
exchange rate of EUR 1: KM 1 95583.
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28. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTTNUED)

28.2. Market risk (continued)

28.2.2. lnterest rate risk

The Bank's exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates is concentrated in its investment portfolio. The Bank's
operations are subject to the risk of interest rate fluctuations to the extent that interest earning assets and interest bearing
liabilities mature or re-price at different time or in different amounts.

The Bank is exposed to interest rate risk through investment of foreign currency reserves. The Bank manages its
investment portfolio with the aim to minimize interest rate risk. The investments bear different interest rates, depending on
the time period of the investment, with the maximum term of investment being one year for deposits and ten years for
securities.

The tables below summarize the Bank's exposure to interest rate risk at year-end.

31 December2017

In thousands of KM

Foreign currency in cash
Deposits with foreign banks
Special Drawing Rights with the
lnternational Monetary Fund
Available for sale financial assets
Monetary gold
Held-to-maturity investments
Other investments
Other financial assets

Total financial assets

Currency in circulation
Deposits from banks
Deposits from the Government and other
depositors
Other liabilities

Total fi nancial liabilities

INTEREST RATE GAP

From 3 Non-
to12 From 1 to Over 3 interest

months 3 years Years bearinq
Upto3
months Total

1,824,495

1,531
1,593,488

112,767

35

875,735

4,549,666

1,093,539

84
27,813

2,497
27,813

2,746114 16

236/02 236,402
(1,580) 2,698,650

- 1,531
58,917 6,202,071

203,908 203,908
7,756 1,214,062

3,532,316 6,519,024 16 535,713 10,587,183

2,550,518
4,319,360 4,319,360
2,482,547 5,033,06s

624,708 624,708
- 10,510 10,510

2,550,518 7,437,125 9,987,643

981,799 6,519,024 114 16 (6,901,412) 599,540

114
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28. R|SK MANAGEMENT (CONTTNUED)

28.2. Market risk (continued)

28.2.2. lnterest rate risk (continued)

31 December2016

ln thousands of KM

Foreign currency in cash
Deposits with foreign banks
Special Drawing Rights with the
lnternational Monetary Fund
Available for sale financial assets
Monetary gold
Held-to-maturity investments
Other investments
Other financial assets

Total financial assets

Currency in circulation
Deposits from banks
Deposits from the Government and other
depositors
Other liabilities

Total fi nancial !iabilities

INTEREST RATE GAP

From 3 Non-
to12 From 1 to Over 3 interest

months 3 years Years bearinq
Upto3
months Total

2,776,632

2,642
2,097,594

116,689

37

195,444

2,888,424

1,007,907

111 19s 61

194,846 194,846
(1,679) 2,s70,397

- 2,642
39,811 5,025,829

205,102 205,102
7,732 ',t,132,328

27,813 27,813
1,813 2,217

4,993,594 4,091,996 19s 61 475,438 9,s61,174

2,039,880
4,066,804 4,066,804
2,229,263 4,269,143

590,392 590,392

2,039,990 6,899,502 8,939,392

2,953,714 4,0gl,gg5 61 (6,424,0641 621,792

28.3. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the possible difficulties in liquidating a portion of assets quickly, possibly in a situation where market
conditions are unfavorable and also with adverse price movement.
Liquid assets are defined as those assets whose conversion into cash causes minimal transaction costs and whose value
is the closest to market value.

Considering the need of guaranteeing the KM convertibility, the daily liquidity should be provided by the maturity
adjustment of the Bank foreign exchange reserves.

The liquidity framework should match the forecasted potential liquidity needs with identified liquid instruments. The
liquidity of each financial instrument eligible for investment must be duly considered before the investment in the
instrument is made.

Maturity analysis

Tables below present the financial liabilities of the Bank as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 classified into relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining period from the reporting date to the contractual maturity date.

Currency in circulation has been classified in the maturity period within three months.

195
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28. RiSK MANAGEMENT (CONTTNUED)

28.3. Liquidity risk (continued)

31 December2017

ln thousands of KM

Cunency in circulation
Deposits from banks
Deposits from the Government and other
depositors
Other fi nancial liabilities

TOTAL FINANCIAL L]ABILITIES

From 3 Without
Up to 3 to 12 From 1 to Over 3 specified
months months 3 years years maturity Total

4,319,360
5,033,065

624,708
3,199 7,311

4,319,360
5,033,065

624,708
10,510

9,980,332 7,311 - 9.987.643

31 December2O16

ln thousands of KM

Cunency in circulation
Deposits from banks
Deposits fiom the Government and other
depositors
Other fi nancial liabilities

TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABI L!T!ES

Upto3
months

From 3
to 12

months

From 1 Without
to3 Over3 specified

years years maturiW Total

4,066,804
4,269,143

590,392
4,606

4,066,804
4,269,143

8,$; : - :'?3:313

8,930,945 8,437 - 8,939,382
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29. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

29.1 Fatu value of the Bank's financial assets and financial liabitities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

some of the Bank's financial assets are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The following table gives information about how the fair values of
these financialassets are determined (in particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs rised)

Financial assets / Fair value as at Fair value Valuationfinancial liabilities hierarchy technique(s) and key

31 December2oiT 31 oecember 2oi6 
input(s)

1) Financial assets available for Listed debt securities on stock Listed debt securities on stock
sale (see Note12) exchanges in other countries: exchanges in other countries:

. France-KM 1,654,622 thousand . France - Kl\I i,136,535 thousand
' Belgium - KM 976,652 thousand . Belgium - KM 1,o1j,o'l t thousand consensus prices - the. Germany - KM 732,285 thousand . Germany - KlVl 541,175 thousand (weighted) average of. Spain - 728,4'13 thousand . Spain - KlVl gOO,412 thousand Levet 2 quotes from multiple. Austria - KM 644,753 thousand . Austria - KlVl 438,424 thousand subscribers who each
. Netherlands - KM 565,017 thousand . Nethertands - KM .177,704 thousand submit quotes to the
. ltaly - KM 552,722 thousand . ltaly - KM 585,423 thousand pricing service
. Finland - KNI 341,643 thousand . Fintand - KM 229,082 thousand. Slovakia - Kl\4 5,964 thousand . Stovakia - KM 6,063 thousand

2) Monetary gold (see Note 13) Listed precious metals on stock Listed precious metals on stock
exchanges in other countries: exchanges in other countries: euoted bid prices in an
. Switzerland - Kl\il 203,908 thousand . Switzerland - KM 2OS,1O2 thousand Level 1 

active market.
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FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (CONTINUED)

Fair value of the Bank's financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at fair vatue on a
recurring basis (but fair value disclosures are required)

ln thousands of KM 31 December 2017 31 December2016

29.

29.2

Financial assets
Loans and receivables
- Foreign currency in cash
- Deposits with foreign banks
- Special Drawing Rights with the lnternational
Monetary Fund
H e I d-to- m atu rity i nv e stme nts
- Held-to-maturity investments
- Other investments
- Other financial assets

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities held at amoftized cost:
- Currency in circulation
- Deposits from banks
- Deposits from the Government and other
depositors

- Other financial liabilities

Carrying
amount Fair value

Carrying
amount Fair value

236,402
2,698,650

1,531

1,214,062
27,813
2,746

4,319,360
5,033,065

624,708

236,402
2,690,797

'1,531

1,264,030
27,813

2,746

4,319,360
5,021,274

623,244
10,510

194,846
2,970,397

2,642

1,132,328
27,813

2,217

4,066,804
4,269,143

590,392
13,043

194,846
2,963,885

2,642

1,185,052
27,8',13
2,217

4,066,804
4,261,731

589,367
13,043

The Management consider that the carrying amounts of foreign currency in cash, Special Drawing Rights with the
lnternational Monetary Fund, other financial assets, currency in circulation and other financial liabilities recognized in the
financial statements approximate their fair values.

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, available-for-sale securities include Bank for lnternational Setflement (BlS) shares
with a value of KM 27,803 thousand and SWIFT shares with a value of KM 10 thousand for which fair value cannot be
reliably determined and therefore they are carried at cost.

The fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities included in Level 2 category above have been determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on a discounted cash flow analysis, with the most significant
inputs being the discount rate that reflects the credit risk of counterparties. As discount rate, the Bank has used weighted
average interest rate on corporate deposits for whole banking market in BH.

30. OFF.BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

The Bank maintains certain accounts in foreign currencies related to agreements concluded between the governments of
Bosnia and Hezegovina and foreign governments and financial organizations. As these accounts do not Epresent either
assets or liabilities of the Bank, they have not been included within the Bank's statement of financial position.

Off-balance sheet items also include foreign currency accounts of the state institutions and agencies, as well as at
commercial banks, for which the Bank acts as an agent
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30. oFF-BALANCE SHEET TTEMS (CONTINUED)

Off-balance sheet items consist of:

ln thousands of KM

Third party securities and funds held with foreign banks

Deposits of USAID
Deposits of non-residents

Deposits of the Council of Ministers of BH
Deposlts of the Council of Ministers of BH on the basls of successlon
Deposits of the council of Ministers of BH regarding the servicing of foreign debt
Deposits of the council of Ministers of BH regarding the Budget of BH institutions
Other deposits of the Council of Ministers of BH
Deposits of other residents
Deposfis - Retirement allowance from Germany
Deposit accounts of banks
Deposits of residents

lnvestments related to securities - Deposit lnsurance Agency of BH
lnvestments of residents related to securities

Liability for third party securities and funds

31 December
2017

31 December
2016

43,566

2,825
2,925

28,785
41

12,977
758

15,009
9,922

247
9,675

38,707

2,034
2,034

43,566

20,941
39

7,943
874

12,085
7,131

375
6,756

28,072

325,683
325,683

356,294

356,294

2,539
2,539

USAID Deposifs

On the basis of the Agreement regarding financial assistance between Bosnia and Hezegovina and the United States of
America for the financing of the reconstruction, special interest bearing accounts have been opened. The Bank does not
charge and does not collect any interest or fees on these accounts.

Residents' investments related to securities

The Bank enabled the Deposit lnsurance Agency of the Bosnia and Hezegovina to invest in securities by opening cash
and custodian accounts in the name of the Bank and the Deposit lnsurance Agency of the Bosnia and Hezegovina. All
transactions on the accounts are performed between the Deposit lnsurance Agency of the Bosnia and Herzegovina and
the Asset Manager. The Bank does not charge any interest on such accounts.

Bosnia and Herzegovina membership in the IMF

As depositary for BH membership in the lMF, the Bank maintains the IMF No. 1 and 2 accounts and provides a custodian
service for the BH Promissory Notes issued to support IMF membership and repurchase obligations. The Bank holds
SDRs as part of its foreign exchange reserve management function. As fiscal agent, the Bank acts on behalf of the BH in
dealing with the IMF but does not have any responsibility for assets and liabilities related to the membership.
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oFF-BALANCE SHEET TTEMS (CONTTNUED)

The following consolidated position provides a summary of the BH position with the IMF:

Consolidated position of BH membership in the IMF as at 31 December 2017

(ln thousands of KM)

Total consolidated position - assets and liabilities 1,583.332 1,583,332
IMF No. 1 account '1,540) 1.540)
IMF No. 2 account (53) (53)
Tota! gross position of BH with the IMF - assets and Iiabilities 1,581,739 1,581.739

SDR holdings, accrued interest on SDR holdings, IMF No. '1 account and IMF No. 2 account reflect accounts held on the
statement of financial position of the Bank.

[91the consolidated position of Bosnia and Hezegovina with the lMF, the gross position of the BH is increased by the
IMF No. 1 and2 accounts.

Assets
Quota 615,924
SDR holdings 1.529
Accrued interest on SDR holdinos 2
Total assets 617.455

l\{F Nq. laccqun! (Note 22) 1,540
IMF No. 2 account (Note 22) 53
Securities 1,205,738
Accounts of payable charqes 1,898
SDR allocation 373,656
Accrued interest on SDR allocation 447
Total !iabilities 1.583.332

BH obligations to the IMF arising principalty
and currency valuation
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31. OFF-BALANCE SHEET TTEMS (CONTTNUED)

consolidated position of BH membership in the IMF as at 31 December 2016

(ln thousands of KM)
Assets
Quota 661,501
SDR holdings 2,641
Accrued interest on SDR holdinqs 1

Total assets 664,143

Liabilities
IMF No. 1 account (Note 22) 1,654
IMF No. 2 account (Note 22) 57
Securities 't.687 .755
Accounts of payable charges 2,157
SDR allocation 401,306
Accrued interest on SDR allocation 144
Total liabilities

BH obligations to the IMF arising principally
and currency valuation

Total consolidated position - assets and liabilities 2,093,073 2,093,073
IMF No. 1 account (1,654) (1.654)
IMF No. 2 account (57) (57)
Total gross position of BH with the lMF - assets and liabilities 2,091,362 2.091.362
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31.

CENTRAL BANK OF BOSNIA AND HERZEGOVINA
Notes to the linancial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017

DOMESTIC PAYMENT AND SETTLEMENT SYSIEM

Pursuant to the law on the Central Bank of Bosnia and Hezegovina the Bank is responsible for the establishment and
maintenance of domestic payment and settlement systems The Bank has established two settlement systems from
January 2001 in order to facilitate efficient settlement of domestic interbank payment transactions; Real Time Gross
Settlement System (,,RTGS") and ciro Clearing System ("GCS")

Credit risk

RTGS enables participants, i.e the Bank and licensed commercial banks, to effect individual and prompt setflement of
one by one (gross) payment by crediting and debiting settlement accounts held with the Bank in domestic currency.
Through GCS the Bank provides clearing services arising from transmitted payment orders in accordance with the
principle of multilateral clearing.
Each participant in the payment systems is obliged to cover its settlement account held with the Bank prior to set ement
of payment orders and must meet certain technical requirements.

Pursuant to the role of the Bank as defined by the Law on the Central Bank of Bosnia and Herzegovina, the Bank does
not provide any credits to RTGS and GCS participants which would provide liquidity to the system in any form

Opentional risk

Withlhe aim of minimising operational risk within the domestic payment and settlement system, operating rules for RTGS
and GCS have been issued, which detine minimum security standards for operation of the systems.

Relevant security objectives, policies and procedures aim to ensure security measures and features. The computer
systems and the networks are operated according to established objectives and policies. The security objectives and
policies are reviewed periodically. Each direct participant is also required to have appropriate securiti measures and
conlrols for processing payments

The Bank has defined the following Contingency Setflement procedures:

t Contingency plans and measures: the Bank has defined contingency measures in order to ensure continuity of
reliable, correct and laMul operation of the payment and settlement systems in the event of disruption to the regular
payment and settlement system, or other contingency eventsi

' Backup location: To support the primary location for the payment systems (RTGS, GCS and SWFT) with redundant
systems (if case of system falling, switching to another one on the primary location is done), the Bank has also
established functional OR (Disaster Recovery) system located in Main Bank of Republika Srpska of the Central Bank
of Bosnia and Hezegovina in Banja Luka.

Management of the Bank believes that the system has sufficient capacity to maintain operational reliability.

32. POST-REPORTING DATE EVENTS

On 14 February 2018 the second tranche under the Extended Fund Facility (EFF) with the lnternational Monetary Fund
(lMF) was transferred to the account of the Bank, in the amount of KM 145,829 thousand (equivalent to SDR'63,4.13
thousand).

After increasing the above amount by the amount of the reimbursement of the ll\ilF s commitment fee and reducing it by
the IMF service charges, the total amount for the allocation offunds is KM 145,822 thousand.

The distribution has been performed according to the usual ratio: 1l3 for the account of the Ministry of Finance of the
Republic of Srpska, i e. KM 48,607 thousand and 213 tot lhe account of the Federal Ministry of Finance, i e KM 97,215
thousand.

The total amount of the overall Extended Fund Facility for BH is SDR 443.042 million.

Except as disclosed above, no adjusting or other significant non-adjusting events have occurred between the 31
December 20'17 and the date of authorization of these financial statements.
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